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Esau Watkins House
Water Street, Chestertown
c. 1739

The earliest remaining dwelling on the Chester Riverin
Chestertown is that located at 109 Water Street. Built by Esau and
Sarah Watkins, it stands on,Lot No. 11, which was deeded to them on
August 24, 1739 by Sarah’s father, William Ringgold. In that deed, as
well in other deeds, and in his own will, Esau is listed as a blacksmith by
trade.

In general form and material the house is similar to the Buck- |
Bacchus Store, a building constructed a few years earlier on the corner
of High and Queen Streets. Like the store, the principal facade of the
Watkins house was the narrower dimension of the house. Its front door,
however, was located not in the center of the three bays, but to the left.
This facade and its southwest counterpart are laid in flemish bond with
glazed headers. Again like the store, the water table jogs above the
basement windows, which have segmental arches of alternating
stretchers and double headers. The roof is hipped and has a plain plaster
cove cornice. There is one dormer on the facade and two on the flanking

sides.

The plan of the Watkins House appears to have had two rooms
per floor with a central chimney stack adjacent its southwest wall and
the stair on the opposite side of the chimney with passage between. Its
plan would have been similar to a typical New England house, except for
the placement of the entrance. Being constructed at grade on the river
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side, the kitchen was located in the basement, like other houses on the
street. The presence of soot on the cellar beams in the room closest to
the river points to its original use as a kitchen. In the attic or third floor,
original feather edge board partitions separate the hall from the
bedrooms. There is one original four-panel door and one five-panel door
dating from late in the century.

In his will, Esau Watkins left his dwelling to his son, John and for
whom he stipulated Dr. William Murray as guardian until he reached 21
years of age. In 1776, John was planning to leave the area. He was
heavily indebted to the firm of Morgan and Sluby, and the house was
mortgaged to them to secure the debt.l Interestingly, three years later

he was still living in Kent County.2

109 Water Street passed through many hands until it was
purchased in 1820 by Samuel Merritt of Godlington Manor. It remained
in the Merritt family until 1880 when it was sold to Benjamin Fleming
for $1000. It was probably during the Fleming period that the house was
lengthened by 6’10” toward the river. A fate similar to 103 Water Street
befell this house: the belt course was chopped off, windows were altered
and the difference in brickwork was concealed by the addition of a coat of
stucco. The old central chimney was removed and a new one installed in
the new addition. The floor plan was altered to suit the owners It _(
remained in the Fleming ownership until 1944 when Miss Francis
Denton, of River House, purchased it and built the block and brick wall
separating the two properties.

Louis and Ellen Perry Skinner acquired the property in 1946 and




remodeled it into the existing plan, with a side stairhall, kitchen and
pantry in the front, dining room in the center with bay window
overlooking the River House garden and a living room. A screened porch

was built on the river side which was later enclosed.

: Lib. DD 5, fol. 140.
2. Lib. DD 5, fol. 374.
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Esau Watkins House
109 Water St.
Chestertown
Chestertown Quad.
Kent County
















